ELECTRONICALLY FILED 2016 Oct 13 AM 11:16 CLERK OF THE APPELLATE COURT CASE NUMBER: 116322

No. 116322-A

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF KANSAS

DIANA SABATINO

Petitioner/Appellee

vs.

THE KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF LABOR EMPLOYMENT SECURITY BOARD OF REVIEW

Respondent/Appellant

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Appeal from the District Court of

Shawnee County, Honorable Franklin R. Theis, Judge

District Court Case No. 2015-CV-000053

Glenn H. Griffeth, #10298 Attorney IV Kansas Department of Labor 401 SW Topeka Blvd Topeka, Kansas 66603 (785) 296-5000 ext. 2566 (785) 296-0196 Fax Glenn.Griffeth@dol.ks.gov Attorney for Respondent/Appellant

NATURE OF CASE
ISSUES ON APPEAL
A State Agency charged by law with determining eligibility for public benefits, and having determined that an individual is disqualified from receiving such benefits based upon the facts presented to the agency by the employer, is not bound on appeal of that determination by an agreement between the employer and employee in settlement of a collateral civil service appeal, to change the "reason" given for termination of employment, when the underlying facts supporting misconduct do not change
FACTUAL STATEMENT ************************************
ARGUMENTS AND AUTHORITIES ************************************
Scope of Review ************************************
K.S.A. 77-621
Standard of Review
Redline Express v. Employment Security B'rd of Review 27 Kan.App. 2d 1067, 11 P.3d 85, (2000)*************************5
K.S.A.2009 Supp. 77–621(c)(7),(d)***********************************
<i>Herrera–Gallegos v. H&H Delivery Inc.</i> 42 Kan.App.2d 360, 212 P.3d 239, (2010))**********************************
I. The District Court committed reversible error when it reweighed the facts of the administrative decision and substituted its judgement for that of the Agency charged by law to determine qualifications for the receipt of unemployment benefits.************************************
A cooperative federal-state program of benefits to unemployed workers.************************************
Federal Unemployment Tax Act, 49 U.S.C639***********************************

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<i>St. Martin Evangelical Luthern Church v. South Dakota</i> 451 U.S. 772, 101 S.Ct. 2142, 68 L.Ed.2d 612, (1981)************6
	26 U.S.C. § 3301 **********************************
	26 U.S.C. § 3306***********************************
	26 U.S.C. § 3302***********************************
	26 U.S.C. § 3304***********************************
	26 U.S.C. § 3309***********************************
	<i>St. Martin Evangelical Luthern Church v. South Dakota</i> 451 U.S. 772, 101 S.Ct. 2142, 68 L.Ed.2d 612, (1981)***********************************
	K.S.A. 44-702************************************
	42 U.S.C. §503************************************
The K	DOL is charged by law to enforce the Kansas Employment Security Law************************************
	K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 75-5701************************************
	K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 75-5705*********************************
	K.S.A. 2015 Supp. 44-706************************************
	In re Oliver, 547 B.R. 423, (2016)************************************
	<i>Ex rel. Schneider v. McAfee</i> 2 Kan. App. 74, 578 P2.d 281, (1978)************************************
	K.S.A. 44-702************************************
The C	laims Process
	K.S.A. 44-709************************************
	K.S.A. 44-706************************************
	K.S.A. 44-709(b)(1)**********************************

K.S.A. 44-709(b)(3)**********************************		
K.S.A. 44-709(c)************************************		
K.S.A. 44-709(f)(7)**********************************		
K.S.A. 77-601 et seq		
The District Reweighed the Facts and Substituted Its Judgement for that of the KDOL************************************		
K.S.A. 77-621************************************		
The Parties to a Claim for Unemployment Benefits Can Not Bind the Department of Labor to Qualify a Former Employee for Unemployment Benefits by Agreement		
<i>Inre Oliver</i> , 547 B.R. 423, (2016) ************************************		
K.S.A. 44-702************************************		
Turner v. Unemployment Compensation Board of Review 381 A.2d 223, (Pa.Cmwlth. 1978)************************************		
Lawson v. Unemployment Compensation Board of Review 2013 WL 3960845, (Pa. Cmwlth, 2013)************************************		
In Re: Claim of Neil, 238 A.D.2nd 660, (1997)** *********************************		
In Re: Claim of Walli 275 A.D. 2d 845, (2000)**********************************		
Erickson v. General Motors Corp. et al. 177 Kan. 90, 276 P.2d 376, (1954)************************************		
Substantial Evidence supports the Referee's Decision ************************************		
<i>Herrera–Gallegos v. H&H Delivery Inc.</i> 42 Kan.App.2d 360, 212 P.3d 239, (2010))**********************************		
Misconduct Under the KESL		
Redline Express v. Employment Security B'rd of Review 27 Kan.App. 2d 1067, 11 P.3d 85, (2000)**********************************		

National Gypsum v. KESBOR 244 Kan. 678, 722 P2d. 786 (1989)***********************************
K.S.A. 44-706************************************
Pouncil v. Kansas Employment Security Board of Review 268 Kan. 470, 997 P2d 715 (2000)**********************************
SB 106 Bill Summary, Minutes of the House Committee on Business
K.S.A. 77-2949***********************************
A Rose By Any Other Name
Webster's II New College Dictionary, Houghton Mifflin Co. 1995***********************************
Fictio juris non est ubi veritas ************************************
II. THE REFEREE'S DECISION IS NOT ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS
K.S.A. 77-621************************************
Combined Investment Co. v. Board of Butler County Comm'rs 227 Kan. 17, 605 P.2d 533 (1980)************************************
Zinke & Trumbo, Ltd. v. Kansas Corporation Comm'n 242 Kan. 470, 749 P.2d 21 (1988)***********************************
<i>In re Emporia Motors Inc.</i> 30 Kan.App.2d 621, 44 P.3d 1280, (2002)**********************************
CONCLUSION