#### ELECTRONICALLY FILED

2017 Jan 11 AM 10:47 CLERK OF THE APPELLATE COURT CASE NUMBER: 116322

No. 116,322

#### IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF KANSAS

**DIANA SABATINO** 

Petitioner/Appellee

VS.

# THE KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF LABOR EMPLOYMNET SECURITY BOARD OF REVIEW

Respondent/Appellant.

#### **BRIEF OF APPELLEE**

Appeal from the District Court of

Shawnee County, Honorable Franklin R. Theis, Judge

District Court Case No. 2015-CV-000053

BLAKE & UHLIG, P.A.
PAUL E. TORLINA
475 New Brotherhood Building
753 State Avenue
Kansas City, Kansas 66101
(913) 321-8884
(913) 321-2396 - Fax
Attorneys for Defendant/Appellant

# **

Statement of Issues
Statement of Facts
Standard of Review
Arguments and Authorities
1. The District Court Correctly Held that the Appeals Referee's decision violated K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7) and (8)
2. The Authority Relied Upon By Appellant Is Distinguishable 8-9
Conclusion
Certificate of Filing and Service

# **Authorities Relied Upon**

S.A. 77-621(c)(7) and (8)1-3, 5-6, 9
edline Express v. Employment Security Board of Review, 27 Kan.App.2d 1067, 069, 11 P.3d 85 (Kan.App.2000)
<i>Terrera-Gallegos v. H&amp;H Delivery, Inc.</i> , 42 Kan.App.2d 360, 362-3, 212 P.3d 239 Kan.App.2010)
<i>Carmland Industries, Inc. v. State Corp. Comm'n of State of Kan.</i> , 25 Kan.App.2d 49, 852, 971 P.2d 1213, 1217 (Kan.App.1999)
ake v. Jessee Trucking, 42 Kan 820, 316 P.3d 796 (Kan.App.2010) 3-4, 6, 9
unflower Racing v. Bd. Of Cnty. Comm'rs of Wyandotte Cnty., 256 Kan 426, 431, 85 P.2d 1233 (Kan.1994)
awson v. Unemployment Comp. Board of Review, 2013 WL 3960845 (Pa. mwlth 2013)
furner v. Unemployment Comp. Board of Review, 318 A.2d 223 (Pa. Cmwlth 978)
<i>Matter of Walli</i> , 275 A.D.2d 845 (N.Y. App. 2000)

#### **STATEMENT OF ISSUES**

Petitioner/Appellee Diana Sabatino (hereinafter "Sabatino") does not agree with the issue as set forth in the Brief of Respondent/Appellant Kansas Department of Labor Employment Security Board of Review (hereinafter "Appellant"). Sabatino states that the issue to be resolved by this Court for disposition of this appeal is whether the District Court properly found that the decision of Appeals Referee Spurgin was not supported by substantial evidence and/or was unreasonable, arbitrary, or capricious under K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7) and (8).

#### **STATEMENT OF FACTS**

Sabatino agrees that the facts as stated in Appellant's Brief are true and accurate.

#### STANDARD OF REVIEW

Sabatino agrees that the standard of review provided in Appellant's Brief and set forth in *Redline Express v. Employment Security Board of Review*, 27 Kan.App.2d 1067, 1069, 11 P.3d 85 (Kan.App.2000) and *Herrera-Gallegos v. H&H Delivery, Inc.*, 42 Kan.App.2d 360, 362-3, 212 P.3d 239 (Kan.App.2010) is appropriate.

#### **ARGUMENT**

Appellant argues that the District Court improperly entered summary judgment in favor of Sabatino based on its finding that Appeals Referee Spurgin

violated K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7) and (8) in his decision to deny unemployment benefits to Sabatino on the basis of misconduct pursuant to K.S.A. 44-706. The thrust of Appellant's argument is that the District Court erred by inappropriately reweighing the evidence originally considered by the Appeals Referee to reach its decision.

Under *Redline Express*, this Court must determine whether the District Court observed the requirements placed upon it by K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7) and (8) and then make the same review of the Appeals Referee's decision as the District Court. In doing so, pursuant to *Herrera-Gallegos*, this Court must consider the record as a whole and examine the evidence both supporting and detracting from the Appeals Referee's decision to assess whether the evidence was substantial to support his findings.

# 1. The District Court properly granted summary judgment in favor of Sabatino pursuant to K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7) and (8).

A reviewing court shall grant relief where it finds that the agency action "is not supported to the appropriate standard of proof by evidence that is substantial." K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7). Additionally, a court shall grant relief where it determines that the agency action is "unreasonable, arbitrary or capricious." K.S.A. 77-621(c)(8). The Kansas Supreme Court has defined unreasonable action as action taken without regard to the benefit or harm of all interested parties. "An agency's

action is arbitrary and capricious if it is unreasonable or without foundation in fact." Farmland Industries, Inc. v. State Corp. Comm'n of State of Kan., 25 Kan.App.2d 849, 852, 971 P.2d 1213, 1217 (Kan.App.1999).

The District Court correctly overturned the Appeals Referee's determination for two primary reasons. First, pursuant to *Lake v. Jessee Trucking*, 49 Kan. 820, 316 P.3d 796 (Kan.App.2013) and K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7), the District Court properly held that the stipulation of the Kansas State Fire Marshal's Office (hereinafter "Employer") on the record before the Appeals Referee which provided the modified reason for Sabatino's termination was key substantial evidence.

In *Lake*, the court reversed a Board decision, noting that the Board was within its rights to discount an ALJ's credibility determinations and provide reasons for its findings, but those findings must be supported by substantial evidence in light of the record as a whole. The court reasoned that the Board's justification for its decision was not supported by substantial competent evidence, holding "[t]he law does not allow the Board to discount an ALJ's credibility determination of a claimant based on presumptions, suppositions, and cherry-picked record references of questionable or limited evidentiary value." *Lake v. Jessee Trucking*, 49 Kan. at 843.

As in *Lake*, the District Court correctly analyzed whether the Employer's stipulated reason for Sabatino's termination (inefficiency/incompetency)

Sabatino's termination for alleged misconduct. In performing its analysis pursuant to *Lake*, the District Court appropriately found that this was key substantial evidence which undermined the Employer's previous reasons given for Sabatino's termination. In so doing, the District Court rightly held that the Employer failed to meet its burden to establish Sabatino's disqualification for unemployment benefits as a result of insufficient evidence.

Under Lake, the District Court also appropriately found that the Appeals Referee had inappropriately cherry-picked Sabatino's alleged misconduct as the sole relevant reason for termination and ignored or disregarded the substantial evidence presented the Employer the hearing regarding by at inefficiency/incompetency. In doing so, the District Court specifically reasoned that the Employer originally discharged Sabatino for both inefficiency and insubordination but that the Employer's stipulation at the hearing left only Sabatino's inefficiency as the cause for termination. Further, the District Court repeatedly referenced the substantial key evidence presented by the Employer to the Appeals Referee at the hearing, to wit, the Employer's representative's specific testimony regarding Sabatino's inefficiency as the sole cause for her termination.

The District Court's finding did not constitute a reweighing of the evidence, but rather the correct analysis which was required under *Lake*. In performing the

Lake analysis, the District Court properly concluded that the Appeals Referee did not consider the substantial key evidence ("all of the evidence") in making his decision. The District Court appropriately found that the Appeals Referee instead improperly made his own findings of fact and conclusions of law despite the Employer's evidence presented which clearly indicated that the sole basis for Sabatino's termination was inefficiency/incompetency. Therefore, the District Court correctly held that the Appeals Referee's conclusions were not supported by substantial evidence viewed in light of the record as a whole as required under Lake and K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7).

Second, pursuant to *Sunflower Racing, Inc. v. Bd. Of Cnty. Comm'rs of Wyandotte Cnty.*, 256 Kan. 426, 431, 885 P.2d 1233 (Kan.1994) and K.S.A. 77-621(c)(8), the District Court properly found that the Appeals Referee's decision was unreasonable or without foundation in fact and that the Appeals Referee took such action without regard to the benefit or harm of all interested parties.

In applying the *Sunflower Racing* standard, the District Court examined the Appeals Referee's decision and correctly found it improper. In doing so, the Court noted that the Appeals Referee cherry-picked Sabatino's 14 years of employment to dismiss inefficiency/incompetency as the reason for her termination. The District Court acknowledged that the Employer's mere withdrawal of misconduct as a basis for termination, and instead offering only inefficiency/incompetency as

the reason for Sabatino' termination pursuant to a settlement agreement, *could* be deemed irrelevant if no facts supported such a position.

However, the District Court found that the Employer not only withdrew misconduct as a basis for Sabatino's termination but also presented substantial evidence at the hearing with respect to Sabatino's inefficiency/incompetency as the sole reason for her termination. In sum, under *Sunflower Racing*, the District Court properly found that the Appeals Referee refused to give the Employer's withdrawal full and proper consideration while instead viewing the Employer's evidence as an attempt by the parties to decide on their own whether Sabatino would receive unemployment benefits on the basis of a settlement agreement. Therefore, the District Court appropriately held the Appeals Referee's decision was unreasonable or without foundation in fact, without regard to the benefit or harm of all interested parties, and that the Appeals Referee failed to consider the record as a whole under *Sunflower Racing*.

As a result, under K.S.A. 77-621(c)(7) and (8), *Lake*, and *Sunflower Racing*, it is clear that the District Court properly held that the Appeals Referee acted improperly. The key facts to support the District Court's conclusion under this authority are (1) the Employer declined to oppose Sabatino's claim for benefits; (2) the Employer failed/declined to present evidence to establish its burden to prove Sabatino's alleged misconduct; and (3) the Appeals Referee cherry-picked

Sabatino's alleged misconduct and ignored substantial evidence presented by the Employer to show that the sole basis for Sabatino's termination was inefficiency/incompetency.

Pursuant to *Redline Express* and *Herrera-Gallegos*, this Court can reasonably reach the same conclusion(s) as that of the District Court. The District Court did not reweigh the evidence but simply considered the record as a whole and, in accordance with *Redline Express* and *Herrera-Gallegos*, gave weight to both the evidence favoring the Appeals Referee's decision and the evidence which detracted from it. As a result, under *Redline Express* and *Herrera-Gallegos*, this Court can perform the same appropriate analysis and reach the same proper result in order to affirm the District Court's correct decision.

2. The authority relied upon by Appellant does not support a conclusion that the District Court erred in granting summary judgment in favor of Sabatino.

It is important to note that Appellant's own brief clearly admits that it is unable to rely upon any binding Kansas authority which is directly on point. Instead, Appellant supports its position by citing to *Lawson v. Unemployment Comp. Board of Review*, 2013 WL 3960845 (Pa. Cmwlth 2013) and *Turner v. Unemployment Comp. Board of Review*, 318 A.2d 223 (Pa. Cmwlth 1978). These cases are relied upon by Appellant to support its position but both cases are

distinguishable from this case, and therefore inapplicable, for various reasons.

Most notably, and in contrast to the matter at hand, both *Lawson* and *Turner* involved appeals of unemployment benefit determinations in which the respective employees bore the burden of proof to show that the initial determination denying unemployment benefits were improper. The respective appeals officers only heard evidence presented by the terminated employees but did not consider evidence from the employers in making a decision because the employers did not appear or present evidence. The respective appeals officers' determinations were based only upon evidence presented by the terminated employees which was determined insufficient to satisfy the employee's burden of proof and require reversal of the prior determination. (See, *Lawson v. Unemployment Comp. Board of Review*, 2013 WL 3960845; and *Turner v. Unemployment Comp. Board of Review*, 318 A.2d 223).

This authority is not analogous to this case because here the employer bore the burden of proof to show Sabatino's alleged misconduct by a preponderance of the evidence. (See, *Farmland Foods, Inc. v. Board of Review*, 225 Kan. 742, 594 P.2d 194 (Kan. 1979)). Here, in contrast to *Lawson* and *Turner*, the District Court properly found that the Employer failed to meet its burden with respect to Sabatino's alleged misconduct and properly disregarded Sabatino's alleged misconduct as a reason for her termination by the Employer by weighing the

substantial evidence presented by the Employer on the record as a whole. Therefore, *Lawson* and *Turner* are clearly distinguishable from the facts and circumstances of this case and have no bearing here.

Even if the Court were to find that such cases are not factually distinguishable, *Lawson*, *Turner*, and *Matter of Walli*, 275 A.D.2d 845 (N.Y. App. 2000) are from jurisdictions which have no relation to the State of Kansas. These cases cited by Appellant are not binding upon this Court to require a conclusion that the District Court erred. As a result, the District Court's award of summary judgment in favor of Petitioner/Appellee must be affirmed.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The District Court correctly entered summary judgment in favor of held that the Petitioner/Appellee pursuant to its finding that the Appeals Referee's decision violated K.S.A. 77-321(c)(7) and (8). The Appeals Referee's decision was not supported by substantial evidence, was unreasonable or without foundation in fact, and was issued without regard to the benefit or harm of all interested parties. Under the standard of review set forth above, this Court can (and should) properly come to the same conclusion as the District Court under the analysis of K.S.A. 77-321(c)(7) and (8), *Lake*, and *Sunflower Racing*. Further, Appellant has offered no binding authority on point to support its position. Accordingly, the District Court's judgment must be affirmed.